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TRIAL OF NARAYAN RAQ HOLKAR
(COLLATED AMD COMPILED By SHRI SANITV P. DESAT)

1o the following pages is unfolded the story of a Rebel named Naravan
Bao Holkar, who, in the sarly davs of British rule in Maharashtea,
zssembled @ gaag of followers and committed several acts of plonder
in Masik termtory and who was charged with exciting rebellion agamse
the British Government. [Te was ulumaiely convicted and hanged n the
public manmer.

The related extructs are taken from the Jedicied Depariment Digry
Mo, 121 of 1520 (puges 1824-96) preserved in Bombay ﬁﬁhws

During 18 firsl few yeurs of the Hrifish role in MohacysHirn there were
several instaoces of disturbances o lew of which wsersill e be woesr bed
from the contemporary correspondence, The lust mrix between the Maoru-
thus and the Enghsh beran m November 1517 and=Ceme o nn end when
the Peshwa Baji Rao 1L surrendersd o Muleelm on 3od June 1515
When the Brtish established their rule in this newly “conguered ferritory”,
a wvast body of uoemployed soldiery seids thoown upon the couatry,
They were ready to join not merely inany feasible attempt to overthrow
the British power, but in any scheme ®hich promised plunder and anorchy,

Marayan Rao Holkar, according to the depogition. miven by him during
his trial, seems to belong tonthe famous Holkar family of Indore. His
catate was confiscared amd We was put in confinement by Malharrao
Holkar, son of Yechorantrao Holkar He cffected hiz escape and with
a view to regain hisgeeritony’, ha first joined ome Bup Singh Thakar
and then Kadir Baksh Pendhari. Then hecame to Magpar and was offcred
the command of ‘ane thousand or mere there. He declinad to enter into
such a coorsoNafslife. He Murther sanght assistanc: from the officors of
Shindes 4,1&_%“1“' and the MNizam of Hyderabad. He devied tan or
thiree Lhapsad mien and sent his representative one Bajabs Bhao to
the Wiz, Bajnba was apprehended by the Nizam's officers, and mutiny
rroke ot amengst Maravan Bao's levies,

Then he returned 1o Masik District, where he mel one Vithal Rao
Vinchurkur, on whose advice he asembled o band ol forly  or G0y
Tollosers and started to plonder (he couniry, LU was found that the
Rulkarni of MNiphad and five Keli Chisfs joined Narman Rao’s services,
even when they knsvw of his plens of disturbing the tranquillity of the
country. The band of rebels started 10 molest the villagers whe did not
give tribute to support them. At last a small force was sent and the rebel
Muravan Fao, along with some followers, was arrested. He wae charped
with exciting rehellion against the British Government and causing the
death of one Jrea Teli of ¥illage Rajur by inflicting tortures on him for
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the purpose of exlorting money from him. He was tried before Arthor
Crawlord, Assistant Collector and Magistrule, Ahmadnegar and was
proved guilty,

The prisoner stated that he was in no way accessory to the death of the
deceased Teli {oilman), that the tortures had not been inflicted on him by
his orders and that he was totally ipnorant of what had been done by his
people. He acknowledped having levied contributions on  different
villagers and extrmcted money from individuals, but declared that he did
&0 by the instructions of VYithal Rao aifor Mama Vinchurkar, His
defence that he had been actuated to the commission of acts of reballion
by Mamza Vinchorkar was considerced to be totally unenrthy-of attention,
as that person never was heard of daring the existence of the reballion,
excopt as one of the Karbborls of the chief rohel. O

With respect to the death of the oilman, whosds tortgred by his
orders, the only possible extanuation thal can be@Rered I’:}l‘ilul:l alhvock-
ing cruelly, was that the Prisoner apparently dul notl mean to destrory
the: unloriunate man bl o exliort maney Tewfshim, The method, how-
ever, o which he resoried lor thal purpese was so iohoman, thal he
must have felt, al thot nstunt, conscogeGl the sk he ran of causing
death to the oilman, and hence he wis Yherefore, considersd az puiliy
as if he had perperivated the orime with his own hand,

The Hindu Lew Authorities [Shasiris) were consulted to know wheiher
according to the Hindu Law Bosks, the prisoner was guilty or not and
what punishment be awardedsto him. They declared him puilty el
sugpeated warions kind:j'Qf Punizhiment.

William Pottinger »Eodlector of Ahmadnager, recommended that (he
Prisongr Marayan Raw’ Holkar shouwld be hanged at Masik in the most
public manner, a8 wh cxampls o the natives of the newly eonguered
provingss, that\ne rank or connection would sscure criminals from the
impariial awards of British justice. William Chaplin, the Deccan Commis-
siener, whild Forwarding the proceedings of the trial to the Government
of Boombisy, soggesied that aking inte consideration distant connee-
tion of the prisoner with the Holkar family, the Governor may deem it
proper W eommube the penally of death wo transporiation for life or per-
peival confinement in a hill Tosl;

Hewever, the Governor und his Councl resolved that the senience of
death promounced epainst Marayan Rao Holkar be confirmed and thai
he be E:.r‘igc_d at Maszik in the most public mapner, wntil he be dead, and
the Deccan Commissioner was authorised to gurry the senleace lnto
exprution gocordingly.

The Compiler is beholden to Capt. De. B. G. Kunts, Dirsctor of
Archives, for enconragement and guidance given 1o him, while compilling
this source mateiral for the Bullstin. L

Sanjiv P. Desal.,



EXTRACTS

Mo, 1 : The Detcan Commilssioher forwards to the Government of Bomba
the proceedings on the trial of Narayan Rao Holkar convicted o
having nssembled a Band of followers and committed divers acts
of plunder amd rebellion in the Nasik Province,

From : William Chaplit, Commitsioner of the Decean,
To : F. Warden, Cheil Secretary (o Government of Bombay,
Bowmboy, J9eh May 320,

I have the honour (o forward Copies of the eedings omthe trial of
Nurrain Row Holkar who recenlly assembled o Band of Tollowers, and
commitled Divers acis of plunder and rebellion, in the Nusik Provinee,!
put to torture severnl of the inhabitinis, one of whom died from the
mhuman treatment he received at the hands of the Rebels,

‘Theze is | think nothing to extenuate the Gurilt of the Prisoner, which
seems to be fully estublished, and [ am therefore of opinion that Captain
Pottinper'z? sugrestion reparding his Chpital punishment might with
great propricty be adopted. The pris: wer, if related at all, is avery distant
connsction of the Holkar fmnjh'.“n'fl%\iﬁ consideration need not thereforo
have much weight in d:tmm'n[ng“%g extent of his punishmenc; but if it
ia allowed to have any the Hongble the Governord in Conncil may perhaps
decm it proper to conmig penalty of death to cransportation for
life, of perpetual confingmment'in a Hill Fort.

Mo 2 ¢ Enclosure to theé above | The Collactor of Al Torwirds to
the Commizfomer of the Deccan the proceedings of the trial held
by his Adsistant on Marayan Rap Holkar and recommends that e
E:lh:iiéj Mordyan Ran be honged wt Nosik in the most public

From “Captain Pottinger, Collector of Ahmadnaigir.
T ; William Chaplin, Commissioner of the Deccan,
Ahmednggar® 12th May 1820,

I have the honout to ferward fe vou the Procesdimgs of a trial held by
Mr. Crawford,! my 2nd Assistant, on Narmayen Rao Holkar.

T2 Mow Nasik B 4 Digteket iy Mahsrssbiing Beate, [Vilg bebaesd 190 35 and 200 53¢ M,
amd T 13 aad B4R 567 B, wiih'an @ioh ol 5850 5. Huiles.

® Capialn Henry Pominger, the Collestof of Ahmadnager.

* The famaus Holkar famidy of Indors, Franded by Mallar Rao Hollear,

' Almadoagar—dow tadguarters of Ahmadnbgar Daserice.

® Arthor Crawfond — Second Assistant Collectar amd Magisirate, Ahmadnagar,
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As the [st Assistant was ahsent on leave, and T have already oMered
my opinion on the Guilt of this peraon in my dizparch of the 28th Febrogry
last wo vour address.® T deemed it proper to request Mr. Crawiord o
undertzke the present investigation, and T hope vou will approve of the
maotives which impelled me £ do so,

O the guilt of the Prisoner there cannod be the sHghiest doubt, and the
defence which he has attempred to set up, of having been actuated 1o the
Commission of acts af rebellion by Bowpee (Mamoa) Viochoorkar is
tatally wnwaorthy of atieation, as that person never wirs heard of durin
the exisience of the Rebellion, except as one of (he Karharries [Karbharis],
Cheal Agenils of the Culprit, &

In the translation of The Depesifion Marked B ﬂ(_}eﬁ-f’ irial (which
formed O of the series trmnsmilted in my Disputeh) Sabeyen Rao Holkar
expressly admits that he in persom plundered the hw'&: of Jeevwah Kooshal
Huneea [liwa Kushal Bama] of the village ofWaunkny® and likewisw
declares that be directed the unfortunate OilfaaMo be tortured. Indeed,
g0 precise 15 he in this lust instunce, thet be ‘mentions the nume of the
very mam i whom he entrusted the creqetion of this inhuman order,
~ N\

Mr. Crawlond bus considered ,i:‘rwmbln: o record as component
parts of the trial, my Dispaiches t0%ou and to Mr, William® of the 28th of
February last,?® und also some Bepositions and & ca. alluded to n those
letters, but of which the deplofents were not culled to give evidence on
the trial, owing to soms em being Prisomers and oithers mot being
considered requisite. N\ ;

Two additional Bepositions marked 7 and § ars also transmitted. The
persons who gave, have since died of the Epidemic.

It now t’i’.r-??na my daty to offer my senciments as to the punishment
which ™a tn Rao Holkar would suffer, and in deing se I shall lay
any consideration nf his connections aside, conceiving that that question
in onc which must fest on the opinion, in amcliorating his fate, of the
highast authorties. -

The crime of rebeflion has always been punished with death, eithees
immediate, or by a Hagering fate, even though the affenders werse Bramins,
under the Mative Governments of thiz Clountry; and if it has been provéd
that Narryaen Rao Holkar had in his procedure, even conceived he
plaa of subverting our authority he wﬂlﬁd have been, on that Charge
abone, mogt jusily deserving of death. The sole object however with which
he seems al frst o have scted was to assemble a bund of followers in the

1 Bep Mo, 3.

* Walke=—a willage, noy in Malegaon Tiafula, Masik Dhstrict,

& Wilkinrn Wikkine—emplowsd noder the Conrdsstonsr o the Decan,
* See Mo 4 aod 5,
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shused home of establishing his authority, over whet heesteemned 10 be his
patnimenial dominions, aod when he failed in that scheme, be betook
himzell’ to plunder as the only means of support. -

The Depesition A of the triul contains ample proofs of the eredulity of
the Prisomer in many instunces, and especiully in imagining that his cause
was ebout to be espoused by Captain Sydenham (whom he calles ANesskiar
Sahib), the Political Apent in Berar; and when he was driven from the
-z-hﬁft wnd we soon afier conguersd Ba_]c-l: Foww's domimions, he appears

ve been dempted by the natureal strength of the Purgonnahs [ Pargeras )
of Massuck [Masik], Tombuck [Trimbak]* and ‘Wunn [‘ln-':1|:|:E|l to take
refuge in the fastnesses with which they aboond. Fy

With respect to the death of the Qilman, who wéestortured by his
orders, the only possibla extenuation that can be offafed Yor such shosking
cructly is that the Prisoner apparently did not pican to destroy the un-
formunate man, bat o extort money from hisy, The method, howerer To
which he resorted for that purpase was o inbuisas, that he most have
felt, at that instant, conscious of the rigk ’rl:e ran of causing the death of
the Oilmen, and be must thercfors, be ﬁ*:-nsu.dezle.] a4 guilly as if he had
mrpﬁtramd the ceime with his own Eu ui«

Wider this view of the case, and.as an example o e oatives of our
pew Provinces, that no rank &R Connection will secure criminals from
the impartial awmh af BrgishYostice, I have o conclude this letter by
recommending (hal the RBrisower Marrayen. Bao Holkar shall be banged
at Massuck in (he mbsipaubhc maaner,

O\

N, 3 :.'l'rial of Maravan Hao Holkar charped with exciting rebellion
ugl.lnsi the British Government.

The I'nql & "Narron Row [Naravan Ras] Annond Row [Anand Bao]
Rin Suniae [?Suuhgl ¥ Haolkar charged with exciting reballion apainst the
Hem'ble Co v's Government and causing the death of Jewa Telles of
the ¥illage u?m joor® Perpunnah Kotool by inflicting on him the mout
exCrucinting turtum: for the purpose of extorting Money from him.

The Priscner having had hiz Depositions marked A and B read to him
i5 desired 1o plead Guilty or not Goilty of the Charges laid to him.

The P‘n-.cnm:r pln:am Meoatrddai e ol .Gl

i Trambak is now a town i ibe Ddstrict and sofede of Masik, siluabad e 19° 547 14,
and 73° 33" E., 20 miles souib-west of MNasik toam. [t was onde headquarles ol &
PN

! Vami—I13 miles, norh of Dindori in Wasik District. Vani (also mentioned - a3
Van)} was onoe the head-<quarrers of a petry divission

1 Bojur Bahula—in Masik Talakz, Masik Tristrict,
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The Court however conzsidors it proper to call Witnesses with a viawr 1o
reore offectually catablishing the admission of his Guilt. The first Witness
called was Kannoojee walfvd Mahadjee Parail of the Village of Kooshi-
guam® Purgenneh Nassick whe having been doly sworn o el the truth
and his Depoaition {marked C) having been read to him he is dosived o
declare whether the contents are trus and whether he recollects ever
having seen the Prisonar,

Witness acknowledged the truch of his Deposition and says that the
Prisoner is (he parsbn who was pointed owl to him as Marron B
[MWarayan Ras] Holkar when the Band came to his ¥illage in Movember

last. He believes there am about 40 people with him. I‘*mqnar appearad
L hirn o have Command of the party,

The Wilness knows nol more wnd 15 permifbed Lo relie.

Sworn to before me this Bacond day of May |20
YSighed) A, Crawford,
Znd Assistant Collestor and Magisiraio.

No. 4 1 The observations made by dr&(ﬂie;nnr of Ahmadnagar on Narayan

Rao Holkar's r-:i:&ll.mn. e spme measares for improvieg
police arragnement in the newly conquered conniry.

Frewn - Hensy Totuinger, Collecton of Ahmadbagar,
To ;o Willinm Wilkins,
Dapaorie® 28th February 1820

1, Idid myslef ihe honour to address you on the 25th ultime regarding
the Rebel Marrop-Pow Holkar.

2. Since them ! have had the hodor of feceiving your Dispaiches on
the same subjeli, under the several date: of the 22nd and 35th of January
and 151,58k and 9th of Fébruary and | now proceed to commmuiale 1o
ol some observations which have ocourred to me on a perusal of them
anid their vidouos enclosures, ’

1, The aksertion mada by Marrap Fao Holkar and hes thres folloaers
in the first Deposition they gave, that no cruclties had becn inflicted on
by of the inhabitants of & Country arc proved to be totally false,
und the admission of the former person himself in his roply to the accusa-
tions of Jewszh Kooshal Banesa of the Village of Waunkay, seots
the question of by whose ordors those crasltics were practiced equally at
rest, It 35 however of much importance that 1he degth of the Oilman of
Rajoot should be clearly ascertained to have happened in conssguence
of the torbare he was pat b and T beg you will have the kindogss to

' Kisbegion—in lptpuri Tohuba, Masik THstrict,
U Dapuri - a willuge in Hoveli Ta&uﬂ:&, Pune District,
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sznd a caretul Koarkoon sccompained by the Buncea [Bania] above namad
1o the village where the sufferer is stated to have resided, and obtain a
detailed account of his demise and the causc and manper of it.

4. The Btatements made by the Thakoors of Dhorgeon’ end alzo
that of the Patil of Kooshegaum are very satisfactory as leaving no
doukt of Narron Row Holkar's having been with and considered tho
Head of the Fehels,

5 With regard to the conduct of Jewaji Maique [Jiwaji MNaik] and
Bhapwanah, the two sepoys of the Fort of Pattah®, there dogs not appear
tx me oo b the least causc for suspecting the former, and thoogh the
latter did nor adopt the most single steps o have MNar Row Holkar
sgpzod wer his manner i8 in some degree accounted for e refleer that
had he told the Jamadar of the plot he had laid fosseturing the rebels
the Jamadar would in all probability have raken ahe eredit of the affair
1o himself, besides which as Bhugwanah was chiefld instrumental io the
apprehension of the Prisoners it is hardly jospdn serutinize the feelings
with which e might have waversd and it is as\likely his Gdelity prevailed
a3 that he was actuated by any other motse.

6, The circumstances of Bhagwanghl having mel o man in the rod,
who lold him his object in going T_LE Tirdee? does not seem te mne to be
improhable; because thronghgwt all the Deposivion which you  hawve
obluwined on this se, Lherd /an evidenl varelessoess uboul disguise
ond even w studied plonfec moking it known that Mormon Bow Holker
was 0 the Meighbourhood of MNoesick and entertaiming troops, but had
Bhugwenah attempied, o seze this mun ot the moment he would have
inevitably frustroted the plot he appears to hove instantly formed of
scizing the rebele and though he wes wvery dilatory (aocording to our
ideas) in its exgoution yet he menaged it very well, 1 am therefors soroy
vou should Kawe confined him as the cduse of your doing so may not be
clearly go hended, and it may deter others from coming #orward
in similax cases in future. 1 hope however by your releasing him  and
presenting him a dress in Public Darbar that the apprehensions of the
persons who have fled will be allcged. The Naique (Jewajes) should also
have an honorary dress and yon have mv authority o incur an expense
of 100 Rupecs on Khillars? for (hose twe perzons.

7. The inzinnations of Marron Row Holkar that hoe was offered meh
by Jewajee Maigue may ba true but it is muach more peohahble they are
Talse, ek why shopld the latter hawe lent a hand to seizs hion, when he
could have, by the slightest hint got that Culprit clear off? The manner

| BT R R AL SIS ru, A D

! ta 5 Vi i Y ! madnagar Disrtict,
16 miles morth-east of Aknla, T

B Tirdhe—a villnpe in Peth Wfabal, Masike Thisirct,

U Khitm—ile Diss of Howour
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in which Marron Row was endeavounred to involve the twoe Koolies

[Eolis] appesrs to me o be highly reprahensible and wnworthly even
of him.

8 The Coolkumy [Kelkarni] of Niphar! seems 1o have entzred
Mamon Rew Holkar's Service, whan be knew ol his ]:|'|:.'|.1'|s of -|,|i~_:|||1'|;|i1:|H
the tranguillity of the Country, and he s herefore in my opinion,
deserving of marked punishment, [ shall accordingly recommend fo
the commissioner thal his rights as Coolkurny may be vonliscated and
he himsell [be] confined to hard labour for six months, In the [mean)
tims 1 beg he may be kepl in confinsment.

9. The only accusstion which appears in the papers senChy-You against
Fazoo Jegjogjes 15 thal he housed Marron Row Hoelkao\for some  days,
If there 15 no further allezed fanlt apainst him [_iﬁgﬁ'h: aught to be
relensed and I reguest you will do so as it will ped\be proper to detain
him in Custody on the mere verbal :l-:cJarut:iun{N'-”rJ:: Vinchoorkur,

tSS N

10 Although the five Coolics [FKolis] w werg sent in by the Munsub-
dar® gsav that they were only with the bBanditti for a very short time and
quitted it, when they saw the matesta.liﬁp'nﬁcrcd by it to different Villages,
wot as there ia no doght of the feciNof their having taken  service with
Marron Row Helkar and as it seems/more (han probable they remained
amongst the Rebals 1ill the appearance of cur Detachments dispersed the
whide boddy, Tam nog dispeset/ie give any credis 1o their affirmations,
and T ht:-E': yican weill km-:p them in priﬁ-:}n, wnd wrile 1o the Muensabdar o
know the particalars of how he came 1o discover thil these men had
been conesrued in thersbellion, on learning which I shall be betier able
to judge of the exténbof their guill,

11, With feépert 1o (he mongy said (o have been extonied from Chose
Conlies I ghdPhuke steps to investigite the truth of that Complaint, but
I am inglingd"to doubt it from the circumstance of the Prisoners having
staled notbiing of the sort in the first confessions they made a few days
before, besides had the Munsubdar felt that these men could establish
g0 serious A charge against him 1 do oot think he would have senf them
Lo vl

12, Thesecond Deposition of these people 8 ambignously worded that
it is impossible oo institate an enquiry from it without explanation on one
o pwo points. They state they were sent for by the Sepoy of Atmaram
Conlkurngy but do not mention the messenger’s nama nor do they asign
any sufficient reason for going so quiztly to Rajoor. They add that they
there fonnd two of the ':I.h;:lll:}' Choels aimd Che Kurmavisdar? ot of whit

! Miphad—pow headguarters of Mo Taiwhr, Macik District.

b AManmehdor—a nable or officer holding a seeeat or milrmry tnk af a certain
number of horse, althoogh sometimes wholly engaged in the civdl zervice of the Siace,

1 Kameriseiar—The head revenue officer of n dislvs! ceutrosied also with the Folice,
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pizce is omitted, and finally they assert that they wers thus fined 35 Rupees,
thought it 15 impossible to believe that persons of their description should
have gone to Rajoor [and] prepured to pay so largs as um. 1 shzll therefors
b much oblipzd by our calling on thom scparately to atate the namc of
the sppoy who came for them, why they went with him, where they were
carried to, who they paid the money throogh and what Eumavisdar was
preacnt? My object in obtaining thess replics ia toconvict the Munsubdar
and Kumavisdar if they are really guilty of having fined and dismissing
the Cooliss. T thercfore shall fecl abliged by vour procuring very detailed
staterents for me, and in the interim T shall weite to Captains Gorden
and Kancock mlamrn tos the sum said o have been taken froam the Coaley
Chiefs by the Kumavisdar, ;

13. I do not see any advantage in keeping Marrgn R,tf;w Holkar and
his followers longer at Nassick and T therelorg nbqiest you will be
so good as to send them to Ahmednogehor [Abmadsazar] in the manner
Tormerly pointed ocul. I they are (o be brought doeveard 1o Treial, T shall
herealler pprize you of whit Witnesses will Becixuired.

14.  The five Coclies and the Keolkurney of Niphar had also betver he
sent 1o Ahmedauggor but T wish you to detsin Viswanath Dixit ar Nassick
entil Suddashew Braminsgee is seised v order thit those two Tiraming
may be confronted. If il should Scentualy appeir thai Viswanaih Dixit
did nor kmow who was lodging o7 his bowse he must of course, be sl al
liberty, bt this s very improbd@hls, and of he wos accessory to sscretling
Marron Eow Holkar ©shall feelMé my duty to recommend g meel mevers
punishreent for him,

15. The Coolkurpy of Niphar states in his Deposition that “ihe
Mephew of the Hagildar of the Fort {name not specitied} gave Marton
Row Holkar 500 @wpees.” 1 request you to do me the favor of oblaining
some cxplanation bere in order that 1 may have the Havildar's Maphew
seized and cdlled on to account for his conduct as it is obvious that the
mors minnde dur scrutiny is on the present occasion wo shall have the
leas rearom to cxpoct any similar disturhances in futurs.

16, T have perused with much regret the ebservations in vour letter of
the 25th Ultimo on the total inefficiency of the Police and Schundies.
This evil is one which pequires your wimost excrlions Lo rectify as without
anceasing atbention the Matives of our new provinees are notorioosiy
wanllng in that energy and even willingness which must constituts a
good Police, T trust however thal by rewarding those who evince activity
and severely punishing all who either conmive 'af the acis of Disturbers
of the Peace or are supine in their conduct, we shall b2 soon able to
reform the habits of our Police Servants, The plan which you peoint onot
of emploving the people of the Country in liey of the forsigners who at
present compose our Sebundies is | fear incompatible with the views of
Government and the peculiar State of the Socicty of the lately Lnuqunﬂ:d
Provinces for by cntertaining the former we should satice numbers of
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Coldvators from their present oocupations and by dismissing the latter
we should throw a body of discontented men on the Cotntry to subsisg
themaelves by plunder. Indesd, the Ssbundies ot present within the
Collectorate of Ahmudnoggor are, in my  juodpement, unnccessarily
nuinierons, bat it has heen dmitted by tho highest aonthoritics that it
wonld be dangerouws and impalitie to dismiss thern wnless very graduoally
and 1 zhall always be happy to attend to your saggestions where you
canaider any of them desgrving of that punishment.

The Kumavisdars be held responsible for reporting évery instance
of failure on the part of the Sebundies in doing their doty as well as all
Jslnces whets Palails of others Tail wo sela of b fepodt (00 caikiol
do the Tormer) all plunderers, and amenided state of the Police in the
Districts imrnediately undet me savisfies me that everything rests on
our dtdefiligably pecsevering in shilling every @mfﬂe‘mﬁ:l-nur in Lhe
Botlom, o 3

I shill send copies af your wafioos dispaiche alluded 0o o the 1st
Porugraph of ihis beiter to the Commssipnes and also Tonslitions of
pll the Depesabions which redohed me il thems A transeript of this
communicilion will likewise be submitadMo that Gentleman.

No. 5 ¢ The Collewtor of Ahm L l"nn'lrdn cormrespondence regarding
Mvarayam Hao Holkar A Deccan Commissioner amd solicits
his instroctions as tol the manoer in which the Prisoner is to be

disposed of.
From : Henry Potunger, Collector of Ahmadnagar.
Ta ¢ William Chaplin, Commissioner of the Descan

] Dapaarie, 251% Feliriary 180,

T harve Nad the lodbos (o receive your ketled of the 280h LUliomo,

T have delayed replying to it unkil it should be in my power o report
satisfactorily on the case of Lhe Rebel Narmon Bow Huﬁ. whi 1 have
allowed to be detiined al Nassick ot Lhe request of Mr, Wilkmg for the
purpose of having hs person identitied.

. That object having been folly attained as well as his rebellions procesd-
ings established | have now begmed M1 Wilkins to send him, as before
direcied Lo Abmednuggur

In (he accompanying Copy of a Dispaich! which 1 have this day
addressed 1o Mr, Wilkins | have entered into such detail of the opinion

iy Moo 4




1 have formed with respeei to Marron Ran Holkar and his Asspoiates
aned partizans that T eonsider it unnecessary to do more than respeilylly
refer you o that compunication and to express my hopes that vou will
approve of i,

I hawe to solicit your instructions as to the manner in which MNarmon
Rao Holkar s Lo be disposed of wheler b s (o be gonsidensd a5 baving
been proved goilty on the Deposilions now sent or (o be brought 1o
Trial a1 Ahmednueggor, 1 fear it will be impossible o prove any very
pelive iodividus! parbicipation in the rebellion by the (heee Gollowers byt
ps they confess they were with him and are also shewn in the Deposition
0 have been placed as Sentinels over the Persons seized- pod carried
pwiy [rom the village of Dhoomar there can remain np-dodbt of (heir
guilt.

If vou uppruw:: of the punishment E::-r the Coolumey of the Village
of miphar alluded to in the 8th Parugraph of my ietter to Mr. Wilkins
1 beg your sanciion to camving it into efecis

The case of the two men (Jewajer Maigue and Bhugwanah) from the
Fort of Peittah appears to me to havebéeh unsccountably considersd
by br. Wilking as deserving of punishfifent and 1 trost vou will approse
of the reparation 1 have requesped thiat Gentleman to make to those
people. They have rendered an imfportant scevice in being the means of
the apprechension of Marrain Bao Holkar and as [ have sated te
Mdr. Wilkina, T hardly mnmﬁxﬂ fair o doubt thair fidelity after such
a proof of it

I shall have the h o submit wou as soon as they eeach me,
further details regarg I1e unfortunace Qilman whao is reported o have
died fram the tnwﬁ ||:|El|::p:;i on hirp, also pospecting the sum said fo
have begn arran Rao by the MNephew of a Hawvildar off one
af the Far'r[a],

alf]mz.i the Cooley [Keli] chiefs in our employ and the
Kumi-l.m-;f-nr of Ankela? shall be immediately required inge, but T confiss
il appears t0 me Lo be merely brought furwu.rﬁ'u the Coolies 10 involve
others in disgrace and punishment.

The chservations in one of Mr. Wilkios's letlers Lo which [ have
adverted in the 18th Paragreph of my dispatch would have given me much
more consern did 1 not l‘g.l perfectly convineed that exertion will remedy
the evil complained of, and cqually so that without the sirictest superinten-
dence of the Chief authority every attempt at introdocing a good Police
into aur new Territories will fail. The application of any rules that may
be found to ansecr in Guzerattes would T fear prove ahortive in the
Dh:ckan EIH at pl'u:-w:ulu ﬂagtuatq:d The ervar into which Mr. Wilkins appears

o — po -

5 Bhu.:'rh:rr_1 f“"‘]—S T'1I|.EI :|1|:|rt'|1. of Primbak, Masik Fmlukbe.
I Ankoln is now o fefoda of Merth Kanara 'I'_'H:I.'ru_:t in Kornpinks Btate.
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to ma to fall as the enclosures to the Dispatch abundantly show az forming
a general cstimate of all facis (whether allesed or proved) on first sight
without enquiring into the minate details can alone lead to the establish-
ment of the truth and the detection of the Minor Apents in any outrags
or disfurhance.

MNo. & @ Deposition of Narayan Rao Haolloar.

A

Trowiglaion of ke Depozition off Narron Row Bin Annnnd Row Bin Saniop
Row Holkar the Cowsin of Tookajee Hollcar token on the Ttk doy of
Jranuary 1M {Fuﬂrp 12N, £n

T had been residing for some days in the House of MWitHwanath Tixit
&ir Bapona Dixit in the town of Ponchootee [Panchawat] (a suburh of
Massick) when I was seized and brought before pha Sitkar when it was
demznde:d of me, who T was, whence T had codyand how T had been
emploved. T therefore reply. T was formerly nDeenlinement in the Camp
of Eshwant Bao Helkar's Son (ihe present Holkar)t by order of Toolso
Bye? I fled from that and came to Indoeé? with two Servants, Thence
1 went to Roop Sngh Thakoor Grasspt ol Puttar, Roepsing collecied
two or three thousand Horse o asfish/me in reguining my Lerttories,
bue when I sow that his force was'sd pmall end reflectsd that the Country
would be plundered and mysell evéntually taken [ quitted the Thakoor
and repaired to Kadic Buksh Pinflaries® Dura#® (Horde), that Chief and
Tockoo Jemadar Pindarie ;pedposed to me to raiss a large body of Horse
and to possess mysclf of 'y dominions in which they agreed to assist
me, but Thad no -::clnﬁql..‘um in them and T therefore left them and came o
Magpoor. T there hecdoie acquainted with Eshoant Row Appa Mobetay

{othite] who senbliis pelonkeer and artendants for me and took me oo

iz honae with@ue/ respect. He then told me, he would introduce me oo
Appa SahibPabd procure Tor me the command of 1000 or 1500 Horse

1 Wialkar Ba:‘:- I[D]knrui Bl5- 331 Som of Yashewand Rao Helkar, aecoecded s an
infant = adbp want Rao's widow, Tuxa Bai, whn [ — repent. The
Ay hn:ﬂme ||11~nc|nr1|n.|:|n1. in the State and in 1817 topk up prms cgninst the British.
']'|.1I=1 Hai an being sispectsd of Hritish proclovicies, was murdecsd, the amy was
somted by Makolm at Mahldpor, oo 2lar December 1817, tormas #ere made, Malhar
Raa MIIE rreated a5 so mdepndent poines, He died in 1833,

! Tusa Bar—wilow of Tahwanl Fao Holkar, amd the meginl during e milocity
ol Malhar Rao [lelkar
51.: Ligdore: - neew in Madbya Prodesh Scate, formesly the headquartes of the Holkar's

le.
! Chirasda— a Custe in Gginrat or individasl of i, Tiving by piescy, etc. in Formee
tirmes.

P Pindaris—a cles of plonderers who ravaged the country durlng b last doys of
the Maratha role.

¢ Ierah—a body of compaoy of the Plodaris.

T Appasahch Bhonsle, Baja of Magpur— whe treachsroasly attacked the Beltlsh and
D g g e o g el i S T

] wai en prisanes. e T o and 5 £ in .
af Jodhpur, where hup-aud in 1R40 3 oa
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in that prince’s service. I replisd that by entering inte such a line of life
1 should never gither recover my dominions nor see my onemicss punished
pncd therefore T must decline it, bat chat T trosted wo, him (Moheley) Lo
befriend me. I rerained there five months and afterwards took leave and
came through Kandeish [Khandesh] 1o the Village of Rajah Devol-
gaum! whenoe T weni Lo that of Karlay? in the District of Jalnapoor®
neint Prmpealgaum. T eesided at Kailay for sis of sevan months, and (hen
went 10 Lahary Kulhimsurt belonging we Suddasev [Sadashiv] Moray
[More], & dependant of Sindiahs [Shindes]. T there mel Bujjabha Bow
Purrushramee [Bajaba Bhan Parashurami] and [requently expluned
o him all my plans and wishes regaeding my pateimomal tighis, He was
pn old dependant of the Ffamily and theselore readily entered ifike my views,
At lust be senl two Carkeons to Lohkary and wrote me h@haid opened a
Megetalion with Waleshun Sahib (Capl. Sydenham) who-hod apreed o
receive me gnd te pos me in immediate possession af\Umber® [Ambad)
and other Purgremats, The Carkoons also iold me it 1t was the Suhib's
urder that I should proceed with them (o Umbex [Aanbud| where | should
be joined by two Dattalions and that | wasfo-fuise 85 many troops as
1 should find requisite. On this information [went to Umber sod levied
two or three thousund men. 1 proposed o/ sall for the aid of 6000 men
from the Bhonslah and to send BujjabheBhow [Bajabs Bhau] to Walashen
Sahib at Auranpabad.® At this ¢risis‘the Kumavisdar &ca. of Tmber
surprized my Camp. 1 still adberesA my plan of sending Bujjabha Bhow
e Aurangabad and soon after ] reteived a lettor from Walashan Sahib
deziring mee to depute a "-’a.kaucflf,m him on which 1 despariched Bujjahha
Bhow arranged for my sghsidizing teo Battalions and he (Bujjabha)
proceaded Lo Aurangam.].fi'h-: Kuomaviadar of Tlinbar now eontived by
misreprasentations to have him confined by Rajah Gowind Bulksh, ao
Battalion came o my@Eesistance, a Mutiny beoks et amongst my levies,
and ey broke um pn which T made my escape and procesded towards
Oshagarh? in Bagesh, T then met Capun, Diavies ol the Village of Abhye?
whe promised\to pet Bujjabha Bhow released and T wenl 10 Oshagarh.
None of (hs, promisss made 10 me by Capln, Thavies were Cullilled and T
(herefore dismissed my Lroops, relaining only lve or six Tollowers with
whom L iravelled on feet about the Country and supported ourselves in
the Yillapes of the Mizam’s Couniry, 1 bed oo froeod lelt oo earlh and
therefore dregped on my existence ns L best conld. In the midst of this

¢ Denlgaon Baja—in Chikhll Tafkes, Buldhans Dhisirict. -
? garli—In Jalana Twfuda, Aurappabad District.
! oy Jalna is a Tiduve, 01 Awranplsad TRSCnict.

! Thix village cunned ba Jocuted. There are o number of viliages named "Lalad®
“Lahori’, etc in Akala, Talgaom, Tihule Tristricts.

* Ambad—n Ambad Vadkka, Auransabad District,

' apranpabad—uoee headquarter of Disiket and refuda of the same name.
¥ Baja Guovind Baksh—boother of Bags Clianduy Lal, the Miesin's Miistar,
! oAnss Fort <in Aosa Daleks, Qsmanabed DEmict

! Ambhoi—in Sillod Afaflal, Aummngnbod District
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the war broke out at Poonah and the Company's authority was established
over Bajee Row's dominions so that 1 was driven to despair, and left
without hope. | repaired to the Perguungi of Mimbayet! where I met orich
Wittul Annund Row (usuvally called Rowjee Vinchoorkar) who told
me all his gricvances. He informed me that he had been impriscncd and
illtreated by the Vinchoorkur that he was therefore about £a raise troops
to atack and punish him, and he invited m2 to ba of his Party, Tanswered
that [ was oworawhclmed with misfortones (and thereford ready 1o do any
thingk. On this Rowjes went to Massick where he, in concart with his
fricnd Bahjoc Appajec, enertazingd forcy or fifty Men, He then came
back to inform me and T accompanied him o (he Nassick Pergiano whers
we began to move about [phirosr fagle). AT length the Company’s roops
came 1o panish ps, Before we encountéred them, Ttold the genpla with
me Lhat they were levying contribotions on villages, moledving the Ryols,
and commitling other acts of violence, that this wis dial Becoming af me,
unless it was dome in Holkar's dominions where [ hafa‘nght (as the owner
of them} to plunder, if if suited me 1 should lgpve)them, and go where
fuie directed, whilst 1 was yet spraking intelligénes artived of Ihe approach
of the Delachments seat wpainst us. 1 thensfore ook two men with me,
Iuft the Party and rempined some dayvs sted in the Jungls, Soon after
this | heerd of the skirmisk between the Sitkur's people und those vnder
Fowjes Vinchoorkar in the Hills pegr(Unjunnes® but I was nol present
at it, neither do | know that time Getywhers Rowjes Vinchoorkur 15 gone,
Even the two Men deseried wie and ¥came alone and on foot to the Hovse
of Ruggoo Puttee [Raghupati} Rannudhee [Ranade] Sanyassee in Punchouo-
tee [Panchavati] where [ sta%ed some time. | was at last obliged to quit i€
owing to Trimbuck Row Daishmookh coming to live thers, and I went to
stav with VishwunathCDikit Punchootckar [Pachawstikar] The three
Men (Rama, Pandopijoe, & Bhewjee) who are now in confinemant with
e came to Ponchontes after the skirmish (above alluded to) and we all
warg selFmd jn Mo Honze of Visheanath Dixit by Yaur Mohemed [Yar
Muhammad]-Tevadar, The above s the whole truth.

Sigied by the hand of Marron Row
Holkar.

\ Written by the Mén of Guanaish [Gangsh
n Bhowanes,

Apent of the Coolkurny [Kulkarni] of he
Town of MNussick.

I mimbayaris 8 villags in Maksgaon fafbe, Mazik Deabricl, 10 piks pow, of Mopdgaan
It was formesly headouarer of & polly division.

¥ Anjaneri of Agjini-——a Mal-topped s of hfll, 4.285 feal alove Be ex, in e
District nnd fafeke of Masik, situsted m 199 3T M. and 73" 35" B
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Transfarime of Guestions pal to gad Arswers recedved from Noarrpa Rew
Holkar (dufe not specified).

It has been undersrood that you obrained some Money [rom
Bhugwant Row the Killadar of Ehyrace[?], when did you do so, why did
you, and what sum did you take.

A.  In April Bhogwant Row was at Nassick, I happened to coms there
with the following five Porsons :—
1. Rama Bhatia
4. Trimbuck Row Maheatta Dindoworkar
1 Mahadew from Kandeish
4, Bhowan Bho Wydeshes
§. Ezvant Bew Mehamita.

[ hid one Tuttoo with me, I asked Bhugwant Row to lenddoe 500 rupess.
I guve him o receipt nor did T before know him, bythe mave me the
money on account of iny connections and Credit Nghgwant Row then
resided in the House of Suddoba Braminzyee G Punchoottes. This
occurred 10 months sgo. 1 have expended the Cysh, T used no foree to
obtain it nor did 1 leave any thing in pewn. IT afty thing should be proved
false in this I am guiliy. The above is trwed)
Sigmed by the bund of Merron Row Holkar.
X {True Transletion)
Signed/Henry Pottinger
Collector dra.

Moo T ¢ Second Deposithon yof “arayan Rac Holkar.
\ B

Transtation of a Depduition of Norron Row Weullnd Amerd Row Holkar
faken on the Ird of Eebrugry T5HL

[ have boen od to state whether [ did not seizes Jown Wulfud Koosha
and Myaram W Koosha Buneeas of the villape of Waunkay Pue-
ramah Aw-dnd extort money from them. T reply, T broke open their
shop in tnber-and carcied them and an Qilman into the Jangle of
Oordanalf?] where [ tortured them {o extort money from them. T made
Joomah Sea Moosulman Redeses drive a stabe into the Chilman's
Tumdament which be agreed 1o give the 300 Ropees and wiwea T
wis about to have the same done to the Banesas [Banizs], they consented
to pay LIOD Bupess on which Mamma Vinchoorkar sent the Telez and
one of the Buneess to armaoge for the Money, The Nexi day the Sickic's
people appeared and there waes some conversation betwesn them and
minge. They told me to go and plunder any other Coontey and that T
might return and be guist there and bound themselves to this by an Oath,
They then demanded the release of the Banceas to which 1 conseoted
and he went away with the Pariy.

(A troe Tranlation)
(Senec] Henry Poftinpges
Cellr, &,
H 47524 -2
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No. 8 ¢ Deposition of Kang Wallad Madh Patel,
C

Subsiznce of the Deposition of Kanes Wullid Madh Patail of the Village
of Rooshigowm [Kushegaun] Purgunnah Nassick,

He siates, in the month of Movember 4 men came to his Village armed
with Swords and called the Mhar whi brooght theem Ly bus (the Patail’s)
House, They said * Cur Sirdar's Troops are close 1o your Villags and we
require Provisions for 30 men ™, The Patail cold theoy there was no shop
in his village and that it would be difficuli to g Provisiens for 10 Men
and much more so for 3, the Seapoys then ordered the Patal 1o get Bread
&oi, or hall ihat number and 0 accompany them, The-Patal then
levied 8 Contobution of Cran &oa on all the x'iUu@nd carrisd
il ool lo the Rebels being alraid (o refuse, He saw abouk e i was
ordered W make his obelsunce To Marrain Rao H wiich he did.

Marmain Ras wis wrapped in 4 piece of Rad B olh and had on
8 Ixerrg [{hotar] the peophe divided the bread u bepgun to eal when
the Sirkar's people arrived and ths Rebels .Il.l-l.mrda- ibe Juongle of
Malligaum, the Falail only recollecls Narr Hislkar, The showe

is true, Dated the 26th of Januarcy 1820, 5 <

€A true Translation)

o> (Sipned) Henry Plinger,
Collector doga,

Mo, ¥ : Depositon of Jima Khushat” Hania,

{ VU D
Transiation of the Depasition of Jewa Koosha! Bummesa of the Village
of Warkay [Wake] in the Aukala Purgunnoh.

In Movember of the gressnt year Marron Rao Holkar came to the
Village of Waunkay, Wroke open my shop in the Middle of the MNight,
plundered it of 4H) the property in it, and carricd me and my Brother
Mlayaram auui |1~'lf:l|l Seller (Tellse) of Bajoor to the Jungle of Oordanah
where ha ided money from us. They tortured us in many ways and
at last 1 Row Holkar cansed one of the Ssapovs to drive o stake
into the fundament of the Oilseller in conscquence of which he died
after his raturn home. At last T agreed to givae thom [100 Rupess and
Mayaram was aeot for the cash whilst T remained in the Jungls with the
Raobals. There wene thrae Bramins with Marron Rae, one of thom called
Mamma, scomed to be the principal, T was with thom a whola day and
night and was eeleased by thom whon fhe Sirkar's peopls came in sighs.
The rebels did not get the 1,100-Rupees from me but they plundered my
shop of all that was in it. They tortured me dreadfully and when they
wers ahout to deive a stake into Mayaram’s anus T then agreed to pay
them 1100 Ropees. Dewjes Naique RBombhay, Tubhajee Nagu Kharray
and Abbajes Maique Bangray were with the Sirkar's people. The above
is trus, Prated the Ind of February 1820,

(A true Translation)
(Sipned) H, Pottinger,
Collactor,
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No. 10 : Deposition of Mayaram Wallad Easiori, a Gujaratl Bania.
E

Transtation of the Depositine of Myaram Wolbel Kustaoree o Gurerally
(5ic) [Gujgrati]) Buseca Tnkolitant of Woankay in dAnrkols,
I state that in this year in the Moath of Kartik Mas the axcway [
of Marron Row Holkar came to my Hogse and in the night time plund
my shop and szized me and Jewa and cwo Oilmen of Rajeor and carrigd
us o the Oodnah Jungle, and then 1o exlorl money from us beal gs
cruelly, T said T wag very poor bul they heard me not, and Holkar ﬁrdzréd
g sepoy 10 take a-siake and drive it ioto the anus of Jewa Telee the
Oilman which order was executed and ordered them (o do Lhe same to
mv:ll.h-ﬁnn,tm:-dl.ﬂ v them 1,100 Ru amd the Oilman agreed Lo
e 200 R ajes Telee wedl for the money W Ridjoor leaving
Jewn the Oilman a.mi Jewun with the Rebels, The Kmm%sﬂa: of Ankole
having hegrd I had been seized had sent on aseefe which met me af
Rajoot, and they went to release Jewa and Jewiin from Lhe hands of
Holkar, which they effected. | gave no mengy tp fh: Rebels, Jewn the
Chlm&nfmmth:iuﬂmh:hﬂdmﬂ:rgﬂmm aght home on a Col
and blood fell from him for 5 or 6 days. Ale then died. This 18 all true,
if any be falss 1 am Guilty,
Writte «JJ}' Wittul Eessow Daishpandy
N [Vithal Keshev Deshpande)
of Fajoor,
loth May 1820
Witnessed by
Abbajee Wullud Ennﬁaﬁ Daishmookh,

L

{Troz Translation),
{Signed) 'W. B. Hockley
15t Assistant Magre,

Mo, 11 ¢ ]]epqslﬂnl of Lakshman Wallad Pilafl Tel.
K

ﬂmﬂ.’mﬂ;&u af the Deposition of Dicclmon Wiellud Pelalee Talee inhaliians
& Rafoar.

I state that my son in Law was scized by a Band or Gang of Rehels
and laken from a Wanies' House and was tortured by the Relels who
thrust a Stake into his anus, be was brought home, blood Aowed from
him and 11 davs alierwards |"|¢ dieg). The abaowe is Trme.

Wrilten by the peon of
Wiltnl Eesoo Despondy,
16ih March 1820,
Wilness—Abbajee Wallyd Sooziujee Duishmoukh,

[True Trunslution)
(Sipned) W. 3. Hockley,
15t Assct. Magmic,
(oce) H 47528—3 (102—13—7%)
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No. 12 ¢ Deposition of Bulhis Wallad Ehwsha! Wani (Bamia).
8

Translation of the Deposition of Buklas  Wolled Khooshal Wanee
Goozratfee of the Fillage of Wuddulles' Purgunneh Nassick.

I hive been informed thut Marrain Row' Holkar aod thres of his
followers belonging 6o the Banditti by whom 1 was illtreated have been
seized by the Sirkar and 1 am desired 1o stale how they behuved lowords
me and bo endeavour to recognine some of the Prisoners. | reply, In the
month of Karlik (November) | went one day to ding with a Buneea of
the village of Mhsoorle? which s aboul poe boy from Waddules, T el
Muhsoorkes to refurn home about dark ood met some people m  the
ord who seieed and exammed me but found nothing. They avere armed
wilh Malchlocks, Swords, Spears, and Bows, and Arrows’™ At was w dark
night uod 1 could not dmungl.ush what custe'the people were of. They
carried me 1o (he Jungle of Kooshigaon aboul (hpesbes from Woddales
whens [our of the parly took me m;ﬁi whilst theothir sut i the distunce
of T or 30 yards in the Brushwood, The fove men then told me they
beloniging to Narron Bow Holker's Party efd that 1 must give them

M0 Rupees. They then stripped me of all‘my clolbes and drove u stake
inlo my fundument desiring me all thedime to give them 1 or 2000
Rupees. | was in extreme pain and inmé dpony, 1 imst offered 100 Rupees
lhen 200 upnd ai lust 250 which (hey dccepied and drew out the siake,
The Banditti sow about this time {3p.m.) the Sirkar's people and moved
away lowards the Unjannerse |Anjaneri| Hills. L hid myself in s Nallah
and |here heard the Skirmish between the Sirkar’s troops and Lhe rebels
by the report of their Matohlocks, but whether any person was killed
or wounded | know noe) I remained all Might in the Nalfah and wenl
ihe pext day home. I'have been shown the Prisoners but do not recollecl
any of them. 1 wesyfao much terrified to remark any thing. 1 did not pey
them any moncys, The abowve is trus. Dated the 28th January 1520

(A true Translation,)
(Signed) Henry Pottinger,
Collecoor doca.

No. 11 : Deposition of Amajl Wallad Yes Patil.
L nH
Snbstarce of the Depositton of Awnalee Widlud Yess Patail of the
Fillage of Dhomporg" In the Perguaneh of Trivabuet,

He states himself to ba neardy hlind but he heard from othem that
thers were from 20 to 30 peopls wlhio attacked his Village and carried
Nowjos and Fawes and her infant to the hills behind the Fort of Trimbuck
when they put their Heads inte a Bag of Ashes, and demanded Money

U Wadali—in Igatpuri rafmbo, Masik Tisirct,
¢ Mhasurele —in Igatpur fafwha, Masik Thiscrict,
! Dhumodi—in Masik fafebe and District.
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from them, saying they were Marron Row Holkar's people. They also
burned them with their lighted matches and at last the Deponent agreed
to go and bring some Money, They kept Nowjee and Rawes and perhaps
they may know some of the Rebels but T conld not sea them, The nest
duy after he came away, Wq:rw_jea alsn mada his escape but the Rebel
kepl the Woman Rawee for eight days, The Deponent gave them no
moneay,

(A tepe Translation) dajed 24tk of Tanyary 1B,
(Signed) Henry Poltinger,
Collecior e,

Mo 14 1 Deposition of Nawji Wallnd Guopaji Karbhari.
|
L3

Substance of a4 Deposition of Nowjee WHFIIH#.GE.I:?L'# Kaarbarray
[Karbhari] of the Fillage of Dhomar in  the Purmainah of Trimbuck.

That his  Village wns plondered during the night in the month of
Movermnber (Kartike) by 20 or 30 personk/who seized him and Annajes
Patail and his Daughter in Law Rawesand her infant child, and carried
them to the Hills where they pul a-Bag-of ashes on Annajec and himself
afid derranded money from them)-aflast they let Annajee go to find the
Maoney which we agreed to pay-TheE people observed amongst thomselves
thal they were Marron Row Halkar's Bervants, and had plenty  of cvory
:hinf. They kept them tup Jays and the peopls used to move about
the Jungle, whilst three stood guard over the Deponent and the Woman,
The third day the nent made his escape. OF the four Men now
seizmed he recongnized g having been guard over him, Two of them
had commen swendy and one a Putich (or loag sword) and they spoke
like Conkunesg\JEonkanis] which convinces him. Ile s now night.
'He does not Marron Row Holkar, The above is all true,

(A true Translation)
{Signed) Henry Pottinger,
 Collector dca.

Mo, 15 : Depositions of Mawjl Wallad Mahajl and Lakhji Walled Mlawrji,
Thakurs of Dhargaon.
J

Subriances of the Deposlvion aff Nowfee Wullud Mafiofee and Lukafes
Wallud Mowjee Thakoors of the Fillage of Dhargaum Purgunnah Naseick.

They stale, that some time about the Dewallee three Maharattee
Seapovs armed with Swords cufe o (be above YVillage and called them
out in the evening, they wenl out and followed them o some distance

H 4T3 —a
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when they forcad them an to the Hills, The following morning they fopnd
there wers about X5 men armed with Malchlocks, Swords sad Bows
and Arrcws, After some altercation they agresd fo pive them (wo maunds
of Rice, one of Dholl and hall & seer of Ghee and Jowjee went to the
L’iﬂ;ﬁiﬂpmpmmmﬁﬂwh,m? then both carried them out to the

where they were detained Gll the Evening when the Bebels said
they were going to the Cookons [Kookan] and released them. They add
that they hove now been sent for (o see if they could recognize any of the
Persons who have besn seized by the Sirkar and they declare that they
do, and that their Names are

Blammon Row Holkar
Ramah Khidmutghur

and Pandojes T
None of these three people (they say) came to the Village bat they
saw thom in the Jungic, This ia all trus,  (\J

/ ~ {True Translation)
(7, (Signed) Henry Potinger,
¢ Callector,

No. 16 : Deposition of Kandaji Wallad Kanaji, Patil of Mulegaon. |
o H
The Patil of Mu-;:lv:mn;l {(Kondajee Woullnd Fonajee) states that in
the Month of Eu?mh;t he was in Eﬁﬁm ons evening very late, when
some people pas ﬁtmmrﬂs Dyheraon,® they forced him 1o g0 with
them as a Gmd.-l: ic:-r.a ut a koss when he made his escape mto the Jungls
near K.-:::-Bhnga,qn; Jbut he cannot say how many people there were nor
who ﬂ'n:].r were,
( (A true Translation)
{Signed) Henry Pottinger
Collr, & ca,

Mo 1T @ Depaosition of Raghn Wallad Jagoji Dhage.
-M

Subpiaece of the Depoaition of Rupoo Walliad Jueojee Diyeray [Dhare)
Trhahitant of Krisfoty Waorve pear Finckoor,?

Slates that he was Tormerly in Lhe Service of Bapoo Holkar Muddangkor
.u.nd that Magron Hnw Hulﬁu wis Lhen o Boy, He qmlwd his Bervice 17

'- Hnl:gq.nr;—m Masik Tu'iul:nz 111::] Dnl:ru:r..
! Diphigaan—im Mnsik Tafwder and Tiistrict,
! Yinchor—in Miphad Jafets, Misik Desoict
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or 18 years ago and has amn: followed the Ovcupation of & Cullivator.
In the Month of Wj'ml‘]l [Vaishakh] (April) last Marmon Bow came o
his willage and put up in the Temple when he recognized him from re-
collection. He carricd him home and kept him for somes tme {Literally
foar halts) affer which Marmron Row set off. He adds that be lodged
hirm for the days/he-did on account of his former connection with the
Holkar family.

{A truc Translation)

{5igned) Henty Futtu:lgr.r
' Collr. &ca

MNo. 18 ;: Deposition of Devjl Nalk, Eoli Mansahdar.
R

Sub.:imn:c'af a ferter from Dewfee Nalque Bombay \Cooley Mansoobdar
to William Wilkens Esguire Sub-Collector of Gungterry  [Cangthad]
dumi fhe [blank space] of Jonmuary 1820, %

A, C.TAler Gﬂﬂ{:ﬁmeml having seized five Rebels T have dispatched
ih:m to you under 11 Men that lJte;r iny-be punished, What more nieed
5y, ~ N

P

(4 true Translation)
(Signed) Henry Pottingar
Collr. &ca.

No. 19 : Drpnﬂfmnfmwlmﬂlﬂhﬂﬂlluhﬂ
) R, P

Translation g \the Deposition of Wishwanath Bhutt Dixit Bin Bapoo
Bt ﬂr'.i:{E Inhabitany of the Town of Nassrck (Porcliootes).

I have'been degired to state, how long Marron Row lived at my Houoss,
who resided with him, how long 1 have known him, what he usoally
did when at my House, and who used o copee bo see hin, I reply, Sudda-
shew Bramunzyee told me that a relation of his who was Daishmookh
of Gundapoor! and Byrapoor! was coming to Massick and asked me to
give him a place to lodge in. He added he would go as soon as he had
prepared gome religions Ceremonies that he had been living in the Honsa
of Runnadheser bt that Trimbuck Row Madda Daishmookh of Dhine
doree® had arfived Lhere and there was ool room.  In consequence, T
therefore allowed him to come. He was twelve days in my house beflore
he was seiped. The whole four men went repulacly to ot at the House
of El.lddu.sh:w Bnmmz.yn: They umused themselves all day at my Houze

4 I'l'u-l: are G-IJI.EI-FIH' {l'nmu:rl;r Glndmuf] and Vaijapar, now two flubas in
"ﬂmdﬁn—md;muﬂﬂmdm taluke, Masik District.
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in playing {Soorkiee, o Game like Draﬂag ot 5 all might. 1 saw nio
rsuns who vame w him (Mamron Bow) nor did 1 know him before,
took him in on the word of Seddashew Braminzyes. I puve him o Pot
end, a Brass Spoon but Nothing else. The above ds troe.

(A true Translation)

(Sipred) Henry PEIHIIJ'I:ECE
Collr. &ca

Mo. 20 : Depositions of three Kolis.
’ W
Subvitanee of the Depositions of Ramlee Wiltss, Goavingdah and Deuree
Kioliey toker of Nasiick or the 3ed dop Felruarp (8200

They siate that aboul twy Months ago they werg sant Tor by the sepoy
of Almaram FKoolkerny of the Village of Rajoor and when they weni
1o Rajoor they found jee Bombay Munsiibddr gnd Gunpat Row
Bhingruy uod the Kumavisdar and (the Codllwiny) which 4 Men (wok
from them o fine of 35 Rupees and having bound them'to Szoreey by
en Uuath they sent them back to their howges. Above a Monih sfier the
Munsubdur came to Reloostah und demgmded 5 Rupees more from euch
which they refused to pay and in conseguence of this they were apprehend-
d and =semt to the Sirkar. It is mew)two months since the first fine was
fevied. A promise was made not 10 inform the Sirkar when the Money
was taken. The above is tro

(True Translation)

{Sjgnadjﬂcnry Pottinger,
Colle. &oca.

Mo, 21 : D-Epu'fﬁl]m l:rl'F!hﬁ'ﬂE'lj Chiloji and Krishnaji Kashi

A X . 3 _
Substgnoe of the Depasitions of Bhowaniee  Widlud Chillajee  and

ﬁmﬁ&w 31-’ Kashee Parails af the Village q.!‘ﬂ.l'm.rfmm Prrgunnal
TN

* They slule that some time about the Dewales [Dma.h"l Holidays aboul
dusk m the evening of one day three sepovs came to the Villuge and
cartied Newjee and Sukkojee Tharkoors [Thakurs] sway to the Hills,
whers they' demanded provisions from them. Mewjed came back o the
Villape for provisions and the Patails seat twe pyiler of Rice one Pilie of
Dholl and half a Seer of Ghse by him. They have heard that theso scapoys
belonged to Marron Row Holkcar, but t|1_::|.' did not see them nor do they
know whenoe they came. "They add that the Thakoors may  probably
know some of the Rebels, Datad ITth January 1820,

(A true Translalion)
e - 1. Potu
Sy 5 Potige
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Ma, 22 ¢ Deposition of Balafi Sayajl, the father of the deceased

nilman.

Trersfatlon of the Depositton of Ballafes Wullud Sapajee an ailman
of Rumbier fn Ankola now an Inkahitont of Rajoor.

T srate that Jewa my son and mysalf et out to Wannky  [Wake] to buy
Bullpcks and remained there at the shop of Mvaram Wanee. Abhont
12 Ofelock al night the aewary of Waraan [Naravan] Row Holkar cams
to Myaram’s House and plandered the shop of every thing and seired ma
and Jewa and Myaram Baneea and Jevan another person alingethar four
and carried ws 1o the Oodensth Jungle and there confined s all nigl,
The next day they demunded money from us, we said we Gers E?w, they
iltrested vs and then a sapoy took 8 stake and threstitanfo (he anus of
Jewa Tellee snd Myaram Wanee, and former agresd-(o, give 200 Rupess,
the Buneea agresd to give 1,100 Rupees. | was sept with Myaram for the
money kaving Jewa oilman, Jewnn Wanee, We @oad (0 Hojoor where we
saw the anwary of the Kumavisdar, they wegbemd relessed Jewsn and
Jewa from the hands of the Rebels. My son Jewsn wus brought home on
4 ¢ot and blood Aowed from him for four or five doys, We gave him
medicine but it had no effect. He died omthe 11th day after he was brooght
home. | geve no money to the Bund\ner did the Buncea. 1 and my son
Jewa always lived separate. Ho livcd. in Bajoor.

Mo. 23 :  Deposition of the' wifc of the deceased Teli.

Trarsiation of the Dej.’hﬂ,nnm af Walleea worman the wife of Jewa the
fecegsed,

I state I‘.'hE.E'IJJ,'; Hushand went to Wanky [Wake] 4o buy Bullocks and
memaimed th House of Buncea, In the night the Bund of Holkar
came to the, “of the Buncea and plundered it of every thing and carried
iy Hushandy his Father, and two Bunceas, who were in the House into
tha Junglsvand there illtreated them and wsed stakes, the Kumavisdar's
aowery released them. WMy Hushand was hrovught home on a eot and from
" the effects of the stake was very ill, e had medicane given him bu it bad
no effect, he died on the dikh of Maghshur [Margashirsh] Seod.

The shawe is all true, if any ba false T em Guiley. [6ch March | B200
Written by Rajaram Govind Daishpandy Gomashtah,
Witness Abbajee Pulivd Soorcajes Daishocokh.

{]‘mé Translkaton)
Sd.—=W, TJ, Hocklay,
15t Agsistunt Majesirale,
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MNo. 24 ¢ Examisation of Jews Khushal Bania.

The Exemination of Jewa Eushol Bunneeg of the Village of Wankay in
Purpannoeh Ankaola,

The Deponsnt having been sworn und bad his deposition marked D
read to him he declares it Lo be correct.

The prisonsr 14 pointed oul o him and he 15 desired to say if ho is the
on by whose orders his shop was plundered and himself afterwards
ilireated : he soswers in the affirmative.

Qfuestion]. Do vou belisve that the deceased's death was’occasioned
by the illtreatment which was inflicted on him by the Prisbacr’s orders.
NG

Alnswer]. 1do, he was in parfect health previeds to this. He Tingzrad
many days durmg which he could ncither ::al; hu!' drink and soffered
great pain. o

Q. Did you see Marran Row Holkae ﬁy:n‘yn:rur shop was plundered.

AL Moy Tdid not. ' O

0. You have stated in vour d&i:nﬂéd:l:::n that vour shop was plundered
by Marron Row Holkar, IT [ oy wid not see him how do you Koow that
it was by his orders,

A. T was told by thepeople who plundered it that they did so by
the orders of Namon BEow :I?u!ka:

Q. Was mu'rfm fow Holkar present when vour shop was plundered.
IF he was, h;n’ﬂ do vou kndw you have alteady statéd that vou did net

A | ‘Enﬁ.rd severul of the Sepovs say that he was at the outside of the
shop und | ikewiss heard some person from the oofside give instrucs

tions to the plunderfers who | undgrstand wasMNarron Row  Holkar
1 beard several call him by name.

Q. When did yoo first aot the Pridoncr.

A. The noxt morping.

Q. How did you know the person of Marron Row Holkar, Was he
pointed oul to you by any porson,

A, Several of the Bund pointed out to me a person seated onder a
tree who they said was Marron Row Holkar (heir master wive had desired
them o demand money ﬁ'ﬂm_lm-.
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Q. You state in your Deposition that you did not at first consant to
give the sum demanded. How wene you at lenpth prevailed on to promise
1100 Rupess.

A_ They at first demanded 4000 Ra. T said that T was oot warth so
mich mopey. They then named 3000 Bs. but T made the same reply. Al
length the sepovs went to the prisoner and I heard him order thém to
tortures (the deceased my Brother and myself) in tHe manner already
%ﬁnrﬂmd wilkess we consented Lo give 300 Rupees and the Tellea T

Upees.

We said that we had oot 5o much money. We were then taken o
: ate placas but in zight of each other, The sepoys had-comrmenced
tzking off my clothes, When [ heard my Brother ooy outdoer mercy and
ofi looking towards him I observed that they were driving a stake into his
fondament upon which [ asked (he sepoys who wete with me fo allow
me b go o my Brother and thet | would agreeCaith him o give 1100
Rupees. On this they consenied and they dasisted from foriunng him,

). Ind you ses them torture the Telles. i
A ldid,hcwuaubuutiﬂyurdnﬂq:’i,mt.

3. What did he say when they wert torturing him.

A. He called oot that theymese mordesing him and at lenpth offered
200 Rupees which they consenfed to receive and took out the stake.

(). Dwaring this timg-whero was the Prisoner. Did be ses them torture
either the Telles or your/Brother.

A. Hea was seated under a Trea about 50 vards from the Tellze and
perhaps a less digtanca from my Brother, the former he could not sez as
he had becn earciéd into a maila but he must have sezn the latter as there
was nothiftg to'conceal him from his sight.

Q. "r;m' hove stated in your deposition that your Brother Myaram
was send for the 1100 BEu which you had consented to give the Rehela:
whe went on the part of the Tellee o bring the 200 Repecs which he
had promised to give

A, Mis father Ballu.

Q. How were you dispossd of after your Brother and the Tellee’s
Father had gone away.

A, We were placed in the centre of about 10 or 15 E:j_:ll.;ll}'ﬁ- iwe of
whom alternately stood on puard during the night.

). Did the Tellee complain of much pain.
A.  Yes he did, he appearad to ma to suffer greatly.
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.. Did you see the Tellee frequently after he bad been torturad
previous to his death.

A, After he had been placed on a cot T eccompanicd him about 2
mile on the road to a village whers 1 loft him and went direct to Rajoor
ty inform his Father that his somn had been released in the manner
deseribed. in the deposition. and . that he was  unahbls to walk in
consaquence of the torfure he had been put to, I then procesded to
my own village and never saw tha deceazed aftcrwards. ’

Sworn to bafore me this second day of May 18200

(Signed) A (¢ l:,rawt'nrd
2nd - Assistant . E‘n]]e.:tu-r @ﬁﬂ Mﬂglmam

LN

)

Mo, 25 : Examination of Mavaram Kastor Ban;m J
gy &

T-Fu'* Framingtion of Wyparam iTr'u..’n'u-.l' R’uﬂm:r Guzraity Bomhian (8
habitand of Waakap,

The Tieponent having hean callgd. ﬁ%ﬁ.éwnrn? his Depasition marked
E is read to him which he declared poag:

Q. Did wou ses ithe IE'nuu:ﬂﬁr “on the might on which your shop was
plandersd. .

A. No T did not sogtum.

(). Was rhe Prispner with the people who attacked your shop, if nat
how do yon km:ni.r ﬂmt they had becn desined by him to do s0.

AL Whey ﬂu Rebols entared the shop they said that they were tha
sarvants of Marron Row Haolkar, during the time they wers, plundering
it T heardsome one in the street desire them to seize the Oilmen iy
Brother and mysell who T anderstond was Narrowm BEow Holkdr, they
called him zakif, T did not hear his name T was graatly alarmed.

Q. When did you l1r'st sap the T"mnﬂ-er

A, When the rebels came to demand money fromiug the next morning
they said they were sent by their master Narron Row Holkar pomting to
Prisoner sitting under o tree They said that he raquired 4000 Rupees and
threatensd to bear a3 if we did not give it 1o then,

Q. Did you hear the Prisaner order his peopls (o tortute the Cilman,

A, 1did. On our refusing to give money the rebels went (o the Prisoner
and I heard him desive them o torture us if we did not |m.1:|'|tﬂ.1m]].r
comisent Lo give money. _ _ _
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1 Did you see them tortors the Teles 7

A 1 did not, but | heard his shricks. He was taken to a litth: distance
from where | was standing.

Q. 'Did the Prisoner sod them ‘torture cithar the Telloo or yourself 7

A. 1 cannot say whother he saw them forture the '.I'n]]m' o1 ot as 1
did not ohaerve where he had becn carried to. Hoe must have acen me
25 there were but a few small bushes betawen ws and 1 could not have
becn more than forty yards from the place whers he was scated.

). Dxd wou seo the Telleo affcraards previous to his dgath 7

A. No, I did not.
Witness having nothing forther to state is desired th rétire.

Swarn to before me the 2nd May (820, (

{Signed) A. Crawford.
Znd Assistant\Collector and Magistrate.

No. 26 : ExmﬁnﬂmuernP‘iiéji'Tch

‘The Examination of Laxesan ﬂ?ﬂ.'iri:! .F‘rmrqjee Tedlee inhabltant of
R fenrr.

The Deponent having haar dulj' swarn his Deposition, marked F,
is read to him which hg | ujbqﬁm to he tros,

Q. How long did yaes son-in-Law live after he had beon illtreated by
the Rebels T

i N
A, Ahout Elewen days.
Q. H;--n' didhyou convey him to Rajoor 7

A He \eml hore of 4 Cot, his Body was greath infamed. ha mqu
neither eas nor drink and expirad abont five days afrer he reached that

phace, in grest agooy,
The Deponent knows ao mare and is orderad to ratire.

Sworn 1o before me this second day of May 1§20,

(Signed) A. Crawiord,
2nd Assistant, Colllector and Magistrate,

No, 27 : Examination of Bakhia Khushal Wani.

The Exarination qf Bukhin Willud Evoshal H-"'ﬂr:r::;-e' Grsrgiiee of the
village of Waddalee Purgumrall Nassick,

The Deponent huving been called in and sworn to lell the lruih His
Deposition {Marked G) is read 10 him which he declares to be true.
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He doecs not recollsct having scen the Prisoner when he was seized by
the mhels, as detailed in this Deposition, a3 it was & very dark night,
but be was rold by those who scized him that they were in the servica of
Narron Row Holkar, and that he was in the Jungle, with about 40 mon.
He undoestood the next day that oo of the Sirkar's people had becn
killzd in the skirmish with the Hebels. The Deponent knows no mors
and i nrd.umd tor ratirg.

E'm:rm to before me thiz second day of May 1520,

[Bigned) A. Crawiord,

2nd Agsistant Collector an:; Mlagistrate,

O Sl
Mo, 3 : Examination of Maw]l Gangajl, 8
The Examination of Nawll Wallud Guagagjee of tha Fillage of DRoomiur
Purgannafh Trimbuck,

The Deponent having beeti sworn his Depasition marked 1 s read to
him and he declarcs i.l‘.!nhl:h.‘l.l:.

. When you wers seized b}r tho Ecbnls did they plunder your Houss
or that of any other pemson.

A. Mo, they did not plendes, ming, I had no property of any valus,
they carried me with them ;u _the Parails House and after thoy l'uad
seized hine and his Daughterihey carried off some cloth and ornaments
which they found in the\House.

). During the tinéyou were detained with the Rebels did they ]:lundat
any people.

A, Tcannofspcak p:adtwnlytaﬂmquﬂsnuu T was kept at soma distanca
from tha great Body but saw some of them move about in the Jungle,

Q. Did you see the Prisoner emongst them 7

A. Mo, I did not but T heard them say that they bélonged to and
were commandad by Marron Row Holkar.

Q. How did you effect your escape ?

AL Twas left along T heard them gay (hat they were poing Lo plunder
a neighbouring village,

The Daponent knows no more and is ordened o relive.

Sworn to before ma rhis second day of May 1820
(Signed) A, Crawford,
2nd Assit, Collr, and Magistrute,
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N 29 : Examinatian of Amji Yes Patil,

The Examination of Amujec Wulhed Yess Patail of the Village of
ﬂimm-ra Purguimah Trimbuek,

Ha‘ung been sworn and his Depesition marked H remd fo him he
declares it to be correct. He is desired Lo state what occurred previous
to and after he was carried to the Hill by the Rebels,

He confirms the Bividence given by Mowjee Wullud Gungijee, Te did
not see the prisoner bl he heard the people say that Narron Row Holkar

was there and thatl (hey wete in his service,
I

Witnesz knows not more and 15 permtied to Tct:i.f:f »
Sworn (o befors me this second duy of May 1830~

(Sigmed) A,  Crawford,
2od \Msste. Collr. and Magte.

Mo, 30 : Deposition of Rewa Bai

The Deposition af Reowa Womanthe wife of Dinwrklia inhabitant of
IMiomaree Pergurnah Trimmbuck.

The Deponent having been(duly sworn to tell the truth deposeth as
follows.

In the month of Sc;ﬁahhcr last about 23 peopls came to my vwillages
and carricd off Apngjee Patail, Nowiee Wullod Gungajec Rooturay
and myself 1o thee Bz in the Tungle diztant ahout fao Eoss, They placed
the heads of fheMwo formes in 2 Bag of Ashes and demanded money
of thermn ht 'th\ nome of Merran BEow Holker, At laogth Annajee wis
sent for B;].ﬂucr but Mowjee and myself were detoined. In the Evening
of the second duy Mowjes effectzd his escupe but L remained with them
utitil the following evening when the Rebels all fied on the approsch
of the Sirkar's people.

). Dnd you soc the Prisoner on the night on which the Patail's
house was plundared.

A, Mo, T did not 368 him.

0. Did you hear that che Prisoner was present on that night or that
the Rebels were acting by his order.

A, T mever heard whether he was present of nat, aor did T anderstand
at that time thal the Plunderers were acting agresably 1o his instroctions.
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. During the tims you ware with the Rebels did yvou ever soo the
Prizoncr Marron Row Haolkar.

A Mo, I pever did btuat 1 heard that He was with them in the Jungls.
My child was unwoll which provented me from attending mone to wh.at

WHE Eoing on.

. Whon did youo firat hear that the Rebels were in the service of
Marrcn Row Holkar,

A Soms timoe afier we had armved on the Hill several peopls cams
to domand money from Annajes and Jowjes stating that they had been
sent by their chicf Marron Row Holkar.

. How did the Rebels occopy thomsalbves rlunng t]\: tlrru: YO WaTE
in confinement,

A. Four or five of them remained with mo on the Hill, the rest went
imto the Jungly at the foot of the Hill carly inghs moming and refurned
in the Evening. Deponent having :rm-thlng farther to state iz permitted
to patire O,

Sworn to before me this ascond daydof May 1820

(Signed) A. Crawford,
2od Asstt. Collr. & Magts.

Mo, 31 : Examination uf Nawjl Shivji and Sakhejd Mawijl.

The Examination nff'r'mu_;"l' wallud Shewfee and Sukalee Wallud Nawfee
Thakaors of the Villege of Dhargaon Pargommah Nassick.

The Dﬂpﬂuﬁnl’*hﬁjng called into court and sworn and having had their
Depositions (iarked J read to them are desired to declare wheother its
contenigarstroe, the Deponents reply in the affirmative.

The prisoner is then shown to the Deponents and they are asked if he
was with che rebels that came to their village, the Doponcnts reply that
they recollect having szeen him the morning after tha Deponents were
taken as statod in their Daposition, the Deponents wers told that he was
Marron Row Holkar but they cannot say whether he wag congidered the
chief of the Bund. He did not speak to them and they wera kepd at a litde
digtance from him, during the time that the Deponents were in confing-
ment the rehels did not kave the Hill, The Deponents knows no morg and
are ordered o ratine,

Sworn o before me this stcond duy of May 18H),

(siymed) A, Crawiond,
2nd Assif, Collr. & Mayrle.
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MNo. 32 : The Prisomer’s Delemes

The prisoner huving been called on o stale what he has 1o say in hig
Defence. 1

He declares that he was in oo way accessary to the death of the deceazed
Oilman, that the torture had not been inflicied on him by his orders nnd
that he was totally ignorant of what had been done by his people.
He acknowledzed having levied contributions on different villages and
exacted money from individuals, but declares that he did so by ihe
msrrm:nrrm aof Mamma Yinchowekar [Vinchoorkar].

{S-Jgnnd} h Crawford,
2nd Assty, Collr, & Magte.

No, 33 : Opinion of the Findu Law, LV

Translation of the opinion of the Hindee I,ﬂﬂ Oificers.
Chiestion fo the Shastar {ME}.

X

You have heard the whole of the-Evidence adduced in support of the
charges against the Prsoner Marman Fow Holkur, for baving exciled
rehellion, against the British Government, for committing various acls of
oppression and for r:auaAipﬁ‘ﬂfv.'.’ death of an Oilman by inflicting on him the
most excrutiating torpgrds o extort money from him. State whether vou
think hirm Guil::{ gh‘;hml.

Argwer

Lam of q:pmiun thal the Evidence which I have heard is amply sufficicnt
to convioh The Prisoner of (he charges prefecred against hio,
True Transkalion

(Signed) A. Crawford,
2od Assth, Collr, & Muogie,

Tranuslation of the Exposition of the Hindoo Law,

Chiestion

A parson having exciled rehellion against the British Government and
plundered and illiresied many of it's sabiects w extort money from them
and having occasioned the death of a Person by such illireatment, stats
whil punishrment is awarded 10 him by the Hindoo Law.
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Angwer

The crime is denominated, isiaw Roope Aporedih Oetums Saboo, the
Punishment according to Narrud [Narada]® is of five different Kinds,
wizk, fining hirm 1,000 Bupess, or by Taking his life, or by Confiscating his
properly of by Branding him aod turning him oul of ths city or by
amputating one hand snd one foot.

True Translation

(Sipned} A. Crawford,
2nd Asstt. Collr. & Mapte,

No. M Contlusion of the Court.

Conclusion

The court having considered the whole of the E_gcllmcn, as well as what
the Prisoner has wrged in his defence, is of opidion, that the prisoner is
Guilty of the Charges preferrad against him, ihe following reasone.
The contradictory statements of the Prisoperdo not entitle him to tha
best credit of belief, the Evidenve of thadwoyBuipeeas of Wankay and the
Father in Law of the Decensed, estabiished the guilt of the Prsoner
heyond a doubt as to His (the priseasel-having given the orders o inflict
Loclire on the Chlman, wogd Chal bisdesih was oceasioned solely by e
torture which he hud besn put to.

The charge agamst the Piy r for exciting Rebellion and for commif-
ting vurious acts of opphéssicn on the subjects of the British Govern-
ment has been clently @roved.

The court has cofgsidered it proper to record a part of the corespon-
dence on this case,

(Higned) A. Crawford,
Ind Asstt. Colle, & Magte.

No. 35 : Minote by the Couneil em the procesdings of the Trial of Marayan
Rao Holkar, The sentence is confirmed and his execution ordered.

The circumstances of the country and the number of wnemployed
soldiars formerly in the service of the late Paishwa réndesing severiiy
necgssary in crimes of the nature of that of which the Prisoger Merron
Row Holkar has been convicted, and the peouliar atrocity of the case
taking awny all ground for mercy towards him, Resolved that the sentence
of death pronounced apainst the said Marraen Eow Holkar be confirmed,
gnd that he be banged at Massick in the most Public manner, until he be
dend, and the Commissioner suthorized to carry the sentence into execn-
tion accordingly.

"Warads—an aoclkend sothar of watks on politics.

BOMNAY © DEIWTID AT THE COVERNMINT CENTEAL FELSS.



